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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited
(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023,
and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI') together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Refer note 44 the company has receivables outstanding from Nalanda Foundation amounting to Rs. 525
lacs which are long outstanding. Based on legal advice and its assessment of the merits of the case, the
management is of the view that the aforesaid receivable balances are good and recoverable and hence, no
adjustment is required in the accompanying of financial statements as at 31 March 2023.

Our opinion is not madified in respect of the above matter. ZSINDIOEN
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the Members of Career Launcher Infrastructure
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {Cont'd)

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Director’s Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;
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Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the Members of Career Launcher Infrastructure
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Cont’d)

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern;

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation;

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section 2(71) of
the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure | a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those boaks;

¢) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;’

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

of the Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure Il wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the Members of Career Launcher Infrastructure
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Cont’d)

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

Vi.

the Company, as detailed in note 44 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2023;

the Company, did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023;

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 46(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 46(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use
accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software
which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and
accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) is not applicable for the current financial year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registratio
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Neeraj Goel / N\

Partner

Membership No.: 099514 ) /

UDIN: 23099514BGSCNC4500

Place: New Delhi AL
Date: 10 May 2023
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited on the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we report that:

() (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible

assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of physical verification program adopted by the Company, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company are held in the name
of the Company except for the following properties:

Nature of | Total Whether | Gross block | Netblock as Remarks
property numb leasehold | as on 31 on 31March

er of ffreehold | March 2023 2023

cases (Rs in lacs) (Rs in lacs)
Land 1 | Freehold 66.24 66.24 | None

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during

the year.

* (e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noficed.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions
on the basis of security of current assets during any point of time of the year. Accordingly,

reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year. Accordingly,

reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of
the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited on the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been considered as deemed
deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(vi)  The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business activity. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii)(@) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight
delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in sub-clause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of | Nature | Gross Amount Period to | Forum where
the statute | of dues | Amount | paid which the | dispute is pending
(¥)in lacs | under amount
|- Protest (¥) | relates |
Income Tax | Income | 0.90 Nil Assessment Commissioner of
Act, 1961 Tax Year 2017-18 | Income tax
B (Appeals), New Delhi

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
loans or other borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally)
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (@) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,

no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period
covered by our audit.
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited on the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for
the period covered by our audit.

(c¢) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made
to us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

(xiiy ~ The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of
the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party
Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed
under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the
Act.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
have an internal audit system under section 138 of the Act and consequently, does not have
an internal audit system. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly,
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)  (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the
management of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvi)  The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
plans of the Board of Directors and management and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited on the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not fulfill the
criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi)  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

\
NO&,@
Neeraj Goel / \

Partner [ * |

Membership No.: 099514 \
UDIN: 23099514BGSCNC4500 ~SOACL~

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10 May 2023
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Annexure Il

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Career Launcher Infrastructure Private
Limited (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI') prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such interal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Career Launcher
Infrastructure Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(cont’d)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based
on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

b M@— 5

Neeraj Goel

Partner

Membership No.: 099514
UDIN: 23099514BGSCNC4500

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10 May 2023
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Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
(All amounts are Rupecs in lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 - -
Other intangible asscts 4 - -
Deferred tax asscts 5 411.84 64.66
Non-current tax assets 6 66.67 8.53
Other non-current assets 7 16.00 16.00
Total non-current assets 494.51 89.19
Current assets
Inventorics 8 1053.09 269.80
Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 9 645.27 552.42
(i1) Cash and cash equivalents 10 361.39 0.53
(1) Loans I 5.88 -
Other current assets 12 24.14 +4.58
Total current assets 1,139.77 827.33
Disposal Group - assets held for sale 39 1,323.40 2,988.53
Total assets 2,957.68 3,905.05
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 13 9.85 9.85
Other equity 14 1,867.48 2,145.62
Total equity 1,877.33 2,155.47
Non-current liabilitics
Provisions 15 80.28 52.87
Total non-current liabilities 80.28 52.87
Current liabilities
Iinancial labilities
(i} Borrowings 16 28110 1,130.47
(11) T'radc payables 17
-total outstanding dues of micro and smail enterprises 70.50 255.14
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than 503.42 122.28
micro and small enterprises
(1t} Other financial liabilities 18 73.53 149.75
Other current liabilities 19 22.27 20.70
Provisions 20 - 0.86
Current tax Labilitics 21 49.25 17.51
Total current liabilities 1,000.07 1,696.71
Total equity and liabilities 2,957.68 3,905.05
2

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes 1 to 47 form integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date.

IF'or Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
iem Registration Number: 001076N/N500013

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited

NM/‘LA;Q,

fAonis LA

Neeraj Goel z Gautam Puri Sujit Bhattacharyya
Parmner f Director Director
Membership No.: 099514 DIN: 00033548 DIN: 00033613

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10, 2023

Place: New Dethi
Date: May 10, 2023

Place: New Delh:
Date: May 10, 2023
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Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
{(Allamounts are Rupees in lacs unless otherwise stated)

Continuing operations
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income
Expenses
Cost of material consumed
Purchasce of stock in trade
Changes in inveatosies of stock-in-trade and work-in-progeess
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Other expenses
Total expenses
Profit from continuing operations before tax
Tax expense :
- Current tax
- Deferred tax
Total tax expense
Profit for the year from continuing operations (A)

Exceptional items

Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations
‘lax expenses of discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued operations (B)
Profit for the year (A+B)
Other comprehensive income
frems thar will not be reclassified o profit or loss
- Remeasurement of post emplovment benefit obligations
- Income ax relared to above item
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of income tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year (comprising of profit/ (loss) and
other comprehensive income for the year)
Earnings per equity share (in Rs.)
Face value per share Rs. 10 cach (Previous year Rs. 10 cach)
Earnings per share - continuing operations
-Basic carning per share
-Diluted earning per share
Earnings per share - discontinued operations
-Basic carning per share
-Diluted earning per share
Earnings per share - continuing & discontinued operations
-Basic carning per share
-Diluted eaming per share

Summary of significant accounting policics
The accompanying notes 1 to 47 form integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even dae.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 001076N /N3500013

Not Year ended Year ended
€ March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
22 1,901.22 LAILT2
23 - 0.48
1,901.22 1,412.20
24 753.10 47745
25 4348 108.69
26 187.72 (88.52)
27 277.15 7181
28 - 3.52
29 . 2.36
30 73.40 88.35
1,334.84 963.66
566.38 448.54
3174 17.51
38 (349.32) (16.94)
(317.58) 0.57
$83.96 447.97
31 59.34 .
39 (63.95) (129.49)
(63.95) (129.49)
879.35 318.48
822 (132
@.19) 0.34
6.08 (0.98)
885.43 317.50
32
957.97 15494
957.97 188.38
(64.94) (131.50)
(64.94) (131.50)
§93.03 32344
$93.03 56.88
2

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited

/’—’/ . ‘l"/\Q’\/&‘ L ne
EVP e v

Neeraj Goel //_/,ff/
Partner ‘ L4

Membership No.: 099514

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10, 2023

Gautam Puri
Director
DIN: 00033548

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10, 2023

Sujit Bhattacharyya
Director
DIN: 00033613

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10, 2023



Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts are Rupees in lacs unless otherwise stated)

Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit before tax from continuing business
Net loss before tax from discontinued business
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Miscellancous balance written off /(back)from continuing opcrations
Profit on disposal of property, plant and cquipment
lixpenses incurred on transfer of property, plant and cquipment
Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues
Other finance costs
Interest expenses on borrowings from discontinued business

Movement in assets and liabilitics, net
Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets:
Inventory
‘I'radc receivables
Other current financial assets
Other current assets

Adjustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities:
"T'rade payables
Other current liabilitics
Other financial liabilites
Long-term provisions
Short-term provisions

Cash generated from operating activitics
Less: taxes paid (net of refund)
Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Movement in assct held for sale

Net cash generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from current borrowings
Repayment of current borrowing
Payment of interest on current borrowings
Interest on delayed payment of statutory ducs
Repayment of preference share capital

Net cash (used in) financing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) 1n cash and cash equivalents (2\)
Cash and cash equivaicents
-Beginning of the year (B}
-End of the year (A+B)

Cash and bank balances as per balance sheet (A+B)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
566.38 448.54
(63.95) (129.49)
2.36
- (0.25)
(59.34) (0.23)
(25.54) -
- 0.05
- 3.47
62.94 128.68
480.49 453.13
166.71 97.37)
(92.85) 471.30
(10.46) 0.54
(14.97) (4.58)
201.10 (467.43)
1.56 (102.84)
(5.27) 18.03
2742 51.35
(0.86) 0.84
272,38 (130.16)
752.88 322,98
(58.15; 8.98
694.73 33196
1,750.00 298.12
- (65.58)
1,750.00 232.54
115.82 242.07
(965.18) (714.40)
{59.18) (128.68)
- {0.05)
(1,175.32) (3.47)
(2,083.86) (604.53)
360.86 (40.03)
0.53 40.56
361.39 0.53
361,39 0.53

&



Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts arc Rupees in lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note:

(1) Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities and financial assets arising from financing
activities,

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at beginning of the year 1,246.29 1,718.61
Loan Addition (in cash)/mnterest accured durning the year 115.82 242,07
I.oan repayments/interest pavment during the year (1,024.36) (714.40)
Balance at closing of the year 337.75 1,246.29

“includes interest accrued

(1) The notes referred above form an integral part of the financial statements.
(1) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 on "Cash
Flow Statements" as notified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companics (\ccounts) Rules, 2014,

(v) The above Cash Flow should be read in computation with accomplying notes 1 to 47.

As per our report of even date.

l‘or Walker Chandiok & Co LLP . ‘or and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Career Launcher Infragiyucture Private Limited

Firm Registration Numper: 001076N/N500013

N
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Pl T

\
Neeraj Goel Y o Gautam Puri Sujit Bhattacharyya
Partner A Director Director
Membership No.: 099514 \‘ IDIN: 00033548 DIN: 00033613
Place: New Delhi \ _ Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10, 2023 y — Date: May 10, 2023 Date: May 10, 2023



Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Financial Statements for
the year ended March 31, 2023

1. Corporate Information

Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated in India on February
20, 2008 to provide various infrastructure facilities. The Company is having its registered office at Greater
Kailash Part -1 New Delhi and its corporate office at Mohan Cooperative Industrial Estate, New Delhi.
The infrastructure facilities are under use of third party in accordance with the agreement entered by the
Company.

The Company is a 100% subsidiary of CL Educate Limited (with effect from April 01, 2019 (‘appointed
date”) as its immediate holding company i.e. Career Launcher Education Infrastructure and Services

Limited is merged with CL Educate Limited, Ultimate Holding Company.

2. (A) General Information and compliance with IND AS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA”)
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(i) Amended Accounting Standard (Ind AS) and interpretations effective during the year

a.

Ind AS 103 Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual
Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These
changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The amendment did not have any
material impact on financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 16 Proceeds before intended use

The amendment specify that an entity shall deduct from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for
its intended use. The amendment did not have any material impact on financial statements of the
Company.

Ind AS 37 Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly
to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the amendment did not have any
material impact on financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 109 Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109

in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The amendment did not have any material impact
on financial statements of the Company.



Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Financial Statements for
the year ended March 31, 2023

(B). Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation:

These financial statements (“financial statements”) of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standard (“Ind AS”) and comply with requirements of Ind AS notified under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, stipulation contained in Schedule III (Revised) and other
pronouncements/ provisions of applicable laws. These financial statements are authorised for issue on May
19, 2022 in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors can permit the
revision to the financial statements after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory
authorities as per provisions of the Act.

These financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement
basis summarised below. These accounting policies have been used consistently throughout all periods
presented in these financial statements, unless stated otherwise

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

1. Derivative financial instruments;

ii. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments);

iii. Defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; and

v. Share based payments.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

1. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

iii. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

i. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

ii. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

iil. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and its realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also its functional
currency and all amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
lacs as per the requirement of Schedule III to the Act, unless otherwise stated.



Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Financial Statements for
the year ended March 31, 2023

@

(i)

Fair value measurements

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value which is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between independent market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet at fair value on
a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

Revenue

Revenue from sale of text books

Revenue from Sale of text books is recognized at the point of time upon transfer of control of promised
goods to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in
exchange for those goods i.e. when it is probable that the entity will receive the economic benefits associated
with the transaction and the related revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognized at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the contracted price, net of any taxes/duties
and discounts considering the impact of variable consideration.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses and price concessions, if any, as specified in the contract
with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Performance obligation:

The performance obligation provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as
at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these
amounts in revenue.



Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Financial Statements for
the year ended March 31, 2023

(i)

(iv)

Contract Balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
financial assets in section ix in financial instruments.

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Amounts billed and
received or recoverable prior to the reporting date for services and such services or part of such services are
to be performed after the reporting date are recorded as contract liabilities as per the provisions of the Ind
AS-115 and shown in other current liabilities.

Inventories

Inventories comprising of traded goods are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost
of inventories is based on the first in, first out formula.

The Cost comprises all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present
location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on
an item-by-item basis.

Property, plant and equipment
Measurement at recognition:

Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalisation criteria are met and any directly
atributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:

a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only
if it increased the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance. All other expenses on existing assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure
and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during which such
expenses are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
value over their useful life using straight line method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.



Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Financial Statements for
the year ended March 31, 2023

v)

(vi)

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods
are as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule II of the Act.

Property, plant and equipment Useful lives (in years)

Building improvements 5

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful
lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.
Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the
assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is
provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may
be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if
any, are accounted for prospectively.

Derecognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds or amount of
security deposit adjusted and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and
Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Amortisation is calculated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method over the life of 5
years.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognised.

Income taxes

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect
of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordarice with

the Income-tax Act, 1961 and rules thereunder. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to

)
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Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Financial Statements for
the year ended March 31, 2023

(vii)

compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in OCI or in

equity).

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their book bases. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (“MAT”) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the relevant members of the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each reporting period end and the adjusted based on circumstances
then prevailing.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the

Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assets
or cash-generating unit’s (“CGU”) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account.
If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded Company’s or other available
fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These

-
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(viii)

a)

b)

<)

budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash
flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in
which the asset is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal
is treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified as follows:
Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost where the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and contractual terms of the asset give rise to
cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cashflows and for selling the financial assets, where the cash
flow represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCT”). The Company has not designated any debt instrument in this category.

Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL”) is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is
classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument which otherwise meets amortized cost or

g
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d)

FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has not designated any debt instrument in this category.

Equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held
for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind
AS 103 ‘Business Combinations’ applies are Ind AS classified as at FVTPL. Equity instruments included
within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair values. The Company makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOC], then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI
to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity.

De-recognition
A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
or the Company has transferred its rights to receive the contractual cash flows from the asset in a transaction

in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company measures the Expected Credit Loss (“ECL") associated with its assets based on historical
trends, industry practices and the general business environment in which it operates. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. ECL impairment
loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss under the head ‘other expenses'.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subseyuent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

a) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
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(ix)

This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except
for those attributable to changes in own credit risk, which are recognised in OCI. These gains/ loss are
not subsequently transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities designated at amortised costs are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date of executing a derivative contract and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset
or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

Leases
The Company as a lessee

The Company enters into an arrangement for lease of buildings. Such arrangements are generally for a fixed
period but may have extension or termination options. In accordance with Ind AS 116 — Leases, at inception
of the contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a
contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use an asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration’.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether:

a) The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the
supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

b) The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and
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(x)

(xi)

b)

¢) The Company assesses whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component,
the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Company has
elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single
lease component.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 - Leases to short-term leases of all
assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value.
The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. The company has not entered in any long term lease agreement.

Disposal Group - assets held for sale

Disposal Group — assets held for sale are presented separately in the Balance Sheet and measured atthe
lower of their carrying amounts immediately prior to their classification as held for sale and their fair value
less costs to sell. Once classified as held for sale, the assets are not subject to depreciation or amortisation.
Any gain or loss arises on remeasurement, or sale is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

If an entity has classified an asset (or disposal group) as held for sale, but the held-for-sale criteria as specified
in standard are no longer met, the entity shall cease to classify the asset (or disposal group) as held for sale.

The Company measures a non-current asset that ceases to be classified as held for sale (or ceases to be
included in a disposal group classified as held for sale) at the lower of:

its carrying amount before the asset (or disposal group) was classified as held for sale, adjusted for any
depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had the asset (or disposal group)
not been classified as held for sale; and

its recoverable amount at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell.

Employee benefits

Contribution to provident and other funds

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognises contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit method. The Company recognises termination benefit as a liability
and an expense when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the termination benefits fall due more than twelve
months after the balance sheet date, they are measured at present value of future cash flows using the discount
rate determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on government bonds.
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Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) in
the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the earlier of:
*  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
+  The date that the Company recognises related restructuring cost

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the

Statement of Profit and Loss:

»  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and

» Net interest expense or income

Compensated absences

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit which are computed based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method
at the period end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are
not deferred. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet to the extent it does
not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date. Where
Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond twelve
months, the balance is presented as a non-current liability.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that
it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

All other employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, etc. are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s Management to allocate
resources to the segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most
relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these
industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services and determined
single segment.

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Company’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ or ‘CODM’
within the meaning of Ind AS 108.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non—occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there
is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. Contingent assets are
only disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the vear attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events, other than
conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/(loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements.
Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In particular, the Company has identified the following areas where significant judgements, estimates and
assumptions are required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impact the various
accounting policies are described below and also in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Changes
in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

£
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i)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
Jjudgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

a) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the
Company, including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be
resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant
judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

b) Recognition of deferred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability
that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax
loss carry-forward can be utilised. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact
of any legal or economic limits or uncertainties in various tax jurisdictions.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market change
or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

a) Useful lives of tangible/intangible assets

The Company reviews its estimate of the useful lives of tangible/intangible assets at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets.

b) Defined benefit obligation

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. In view of the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

¢) Inventories

The Company estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most reliable
evidence available at each reporting date. The future realisation of these inventories may be affected by
future technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future selling prices.

d) Impairment of non-financial assets

In assessing impairment, Company estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating
units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation
uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable
discount rate.
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e) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Amendment to Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued but not yet effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. MCA, vide its

circular dated 31 March 2023 has issued Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2023 to further amend the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as below:

a) Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statement

Requirement to disclose ‘material accounting policies’ instead of ‘significant accounting policies® and
related guidance included to determine whether the policy is material or not.

b) Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Definition of ‘accounting estimates’ now included in the standard enabling distinction between change in
accounting estimates from change in accounting policies.

¢) Ind AS 12 Income Taxes
Transactions that does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences at the time of
initial transaction have now been included in the exemptions for recognition of deferred tax liability and

deferred tax assets in case of taxable temporary differences.

The Company is currently evaluating the impact of amendments to the aforementioned accounting
standards on its financial statements.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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A. Equity share capital

Balance as at April 1, 2021 9.85
Changes in equity share capital -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 9.85
Changes in equity share capital -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 9.85

B. Other equity

Particulars Reserves and surplus Remeasurement
Security Deemed | 0.01% Optionally Retained | of defined benefit
premium equity convertible non Earnings plans Total
Co—r— attributable to
preference shares to owners of
classified as equity the Company
Balance as at April 1, 2021 3,339.26 20.33 11.04 (1,221.84) 0.76 2,149.55
Profit for the year - - 318.48 - 318.48
Transfer on account of redemption of] (321.43) - - - (321.43)
0.01°  opuonally  convertble  non
cumulative preference shares
Other comprehensive Income
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plan, - - - (0.98) (0.98)
net of rax
Total comprehensive income (321.43) - - 318.48 (0.98) (3.93)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 3,017.83 20.33 11.04 (903.36) (0.22) 2,145.62
Profit for the year - 879.35 879.35
Transfer on account of redemption of] (1,163.57) - - - (1,163.57)
0.01°0  optionally  convertible  non
cumulative preference shares
Other comprehensive mcome
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plan, - - - 6.08 6.08
net of tax
Total comprehensive income (1,163.57) - - 879.35 6.08 (278.14)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,854.26 20.33 11.04 (24.01) 5.86 1,867.48

Summary of significant accounting policies
T'he accompanying notes 1 to 47 form integral patt of these financial sratements.

As per our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
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(Allamounts are Rupees in lacs unless othenwise stated)

3

Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Frechold Building Total
Land improvement
Balance as at April 01, 2021 553.74 7.89 561.63
Additions - - -
Reclassification to assets held for sale (refer note 1) 66.24 - 66.24
Disposals 487.50 - 487.50
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - 7.89 7.89
Additions - - -
Reclassification to assets held for sale (refer note 1) - - -
Disposals - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - 7.89 7.89
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 01, 2021 - 5.53 5.53
Depreciation for the vear - 2.36 2.36
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - 7.89 7.89
Depreciation for the vear - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - 7.89 7.89
Carrving amount (net)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - - -
Notes:-

i. During the previous year ended March 31, 2022,

Rs. 66.24 lacs located at Laridabad as asscts held for sale. {refer note 39)

(This space has been intentionally ki blank)

the Company had re-classified frechold land amounting to
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4 Other intangible assets

Particulars Software Total
Balance as at April 01, 2021 0.64 0.64
Addibons - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 0.64 0.64
Additions - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.64 0.64
Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April 01, 2021 0.64 0.64
Amortisation for the year - R
Balance as at March 31, 2022 0.64 0.64
Amortisation for the vear - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.64 0.64

Carrying amount (net)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 . -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - -

(1his speree hais been intentionatly kft blank)
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5. Deferred tax assets

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred rax assets (refer note 380 41184 64,66
41184 64,66
6. Other non-current tax assets
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
\dbvance smeome-tix 66.67 853
66.67 R
7. Other non-current assets
Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Capitad advances 16.00 16.00
16.00 16.00
8. Inventories
Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value
Raw matenal ‘vefec e 1) 4231 2131
Steck n trde-Books 60.78 2484
103.09 269.80

Note:
«. Includes caw mutessals lying with third parties March 31, 2023: Rs, 4231 Tues "March 31,2022 Rs 2131 laesh.
. Mlinvenrodes caregories cepeesent text books.

(Tl e hure deowi 2uteniooniadly 2l blanky
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9. Trade receivables

Unsecured, consucdered good
Ceeditimpared

Less: Allawance for doubeful raade eeeivables

Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as below:
Foew trade recervables from related parties (refer note s & nore i

for the year ended March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

64527

53242

643.27

645.27

119.92

2355

119.92

23.55

“ The Counpany has measured Expecred UCredie Lass of tade eecereahle based on simplitied approach as per Ind AS 109 “Financial Tnstnanents” excepr hulk customer and other. (vefer nore no

+1

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule

As at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of

payment

Not due

Less than
6 months

6 months
to 1 year

1-2 years

2.3 years

More than
3 years

Total

Undisputed trade receivables- consulered soed

119.92

Undisputed teade receivables- which have sigmificant
increase i credit dsk

| ndisputed reade recervables- credit impaced

I pured raade receivables- considered zood

18378

Disputed reade receivables- which have siguticant
ncrease in credit ask

Dispured reade weeivables- eredit imy aiced

As at March 31, 2022

ing for following periods from due date of

yment

Not due

Less than
6 months

6 months
to 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than
3 years

Taotal

Undisputed rrade recevables- considered wod

Unchsputed reacle recervables- which have sgnificant

wnwn:nsc in credst ask
U pured trade recesvables- credit imoired

Disiured reade cocenvables- considered 2 od

183,78

34157

Dispured reade recenvables- which have significant
merease v credit osk

Dispured reade seceivables- eret impared

Note:

1 For esplanation on the Company credit osk management process refee note no. 415
1. No tzade or other recervable are due from director or other officer of the Campany and fiems or peivare companies in which any director ss a pautner, a director or 4 member cither jointly or

sevenillv with other pessons except as stated abive.

m For trade recervable owangs feoin relared pactses frefer noce 405
w Tchades recervable from Nalanda Foundation irefer note 440

10. Cash and cash equivalents

Balunces with banks on cugrent accounts

For explnaton on the Company ceedit ask management process {refer note ne.

Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
36139 a3
361.39 0.53
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(I amounes are Rupees i laes unless othenwise srareds

11. Loans-current
Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured and considered good
Loans 1o employees 3.88
5.88 -
Disclosure for loan given on demand
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Amount % of total Amount % of total
Type of bo r outstanding advance outstanding advance
Others 588 100* W
For explananon na the Company credit ask manggement process (refer nute no, 41)
12. Other current assets
Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances wath govermnment athonbies 19.29 400
Other recavables’ 458 058
Prepad expenses 0.27
24.14 4.58

Teincludes advances gven to emplovees

(Ui gpace haas e ctortionally oft bewdsy
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(Al amounts are Rupees in lacs unless otherwise stated)

13. Equity share capital

The Company has two classes of shares ie. equiry shares and 10.01%0 oprionaily convertible non cumulative preference shares, both having a par value of  Rs.10

per share.

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount

Authorised shares

liguity shares of Rs. 10 cach (previous vear Rs. 10 eachy 100,000 10.00 100,000 10.00

0.01° Opuonally convertible non cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10 200,000 20.00 200,000 20.00

each (previous year Rs. 10 each)

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares

Liguity shares of Rs. 10 cach (previous year Rs. 10 cach) 98,468 9.85 98,468 9.85

98,468 9.85 98,468 9.85

a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount

At the beginning /end of the vear 98,468 9.85 98,468 9.85

0.01% Optionally convertible non cumulative prefe e sh

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount

At the beginning of the year 117,532 1175 150,000 15.00

Less 1 Redeemed during che vear (117,532} {11.75) (32,468) (3.25)

Ourstanding at the end of the vear - - 117,532 11.75

b) Terms/rights attached to equity/preference shares
Equity shares
Voting

Jiach holder of equity shares 1s entitled to one vote per share held.

Dividends )

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the sharcholders in ensuing
Annual General Meeting, except in the case where interim dividend is distributed.

Liquidation

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares shall be entted to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of
all preferendial amounts, if any. Such distribution amounts will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

0.01% Optionally convertible non cumulative preference shares
Voting

The preference shares do not carry any voting righrs.

Dividends

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. Preference shares have preferenal right of dividend over cquity shares in event of declaration of
dividend. These shares carry dividend rate of 0,017 o, The dividend is payable only when the Company declares dividend during a particular financial year.

Terms of conversion/red

The preference shares were issued for a peciod of five vears with an option of their conversion into equity shares. [However, the Board of Directors in its meeting
held on March 16, 2016 decided to increase the tenure of their redemption or conversion by another five vears. The price, rate and other teems of
converston /redemption will be mutually agreed upon at the time of redemption.

Liquidation
In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of optionally convertible non cumulative preference shares classified as cquity (OCNDPS) shall be entitled to

receive all of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts and before payment to cquity sharcholders, if any. Such
distribution amounts will be in proportion to the number of OCNPS held by the sharcholders upto the extent of agreed redemption amount of such shares.
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<) Shares held by holding company

Out of equiry and preference shares issucd by the Company. shares held by its holding company are as below:

Equity shares

Name of share halders As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Numbers % held Numbers % held

i CL Iiducate Limited (Tlolding Company; 93468 94.92 93468 9492

Preference shares

Name of share holders As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Numbers % held Numbers % held

CI. Educate Limited (TToldmg Company) 0.00 117532 100.00

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity shares

Name of share holders As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Numbers "o held Numbers % held

1. CI. Fducate Limited (Holding Company 93,468 9492 93,468 94.92

u. Satya Naravaman R. (as nominee of CI. Fducate Limited) 5000 3.08 3,000 3.08

Preference shares

Name of share holders As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Numbers % of total % change Numbers % of total shares %4 change during
shares during the the year
year
CL Educate Lmmited (Holdmg Company) - 0,00 L0 e 117,532 100.00" 000"

¢j No class of shaves have been allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being received m cash, allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares

or bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the date of Balance sheet.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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14. Other equity

Securities premium

Opening balance
Less @ Transfer on account of redemption of 0.01° 0 optionally convertible non cumulative
preference shares

Balance at the end of the year (A)

Deemed capital conmbution
Balance at the beginning / end of the year (B)

0.01% Oprionally convertible non comulative preference shares classified as cyuity
Balance at the beginning / end of the year (C)

Retained earnings
Opening balance

Net Profit for the year
Closing balance (D)

R of defined benefit plans
Opening balance

Add: Addition during the vear

Closing balance (E)

Total reserves and surplus (A+B+C+D+E)

(i) Securities premium

for the year ended March 31, 2023
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
301783 3.339.26
(1,163.57: (32143
1,854.26 3,017.83
20.33 20,33
20.33 20.33
JREE 1104
11.04 11.04
{913.36; i1,221.84;
879.35 31848
(24.01) (903.36)
(0.22) 0476
6.08 {.98)
5.86 (0.22)
1,867.48 2,145.62

Secuntics premium has been created upon issue of shares ar premium. The eeserve shall be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies \er, 2013,

(ii) Deemed equity
The Company have received financial guarantee from its promoters,

(iii) Retained earnings

Created from profit/loss of the Company, as adjusted for distributions o owners and transfer to other reserve.

15. Long-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 34)
Goratuity
Compensared absences

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
46.87 36.14
3341 16.73
80.28 52.87
- .
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16. Current borrowings

Unsecured As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

From related parties [note () & ()] 28010 113047
281.10 1,130.47
(1) The Company has an ¢ ling interest free of unsecured Ioan of Rs. 28110 lacs (March 31, 2022 : Re. 1,130.47 lacs) from CI. Fducate Limited, the holding

company. The Toan is pavable on demand or by March 31, 2024 which ever is carlier. As per the terms of the agreement the FHlolding Company may exeend loan upto
a maximum limit of Rs. 190004 facs. Interest due on luan is debited to loan account at the end of every fmancial year {tefer note 4.

(' For explanation on the Company hiquidity tisk management process refer note no. 41,
! P pany lijuidity gement p

17. Trade payables

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Trade payables
-toral outstanding dues of micro and small enterprses (eefer note 37, T0.50 25514
-total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro and small enterprises 50342 122.28

573.92 371742

‘Trade payables Ageing Schedule

As at March 31,2023 Outstanding for following periods from due date of ent

Not due Less than 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than Total
1 year 3 years

Total outstanding dues of micro T30 7050
enterprises and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors 245.15 12977 101.21 27.29 50342
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

Disputed Dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed Dues of creditors other , - -
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Total 315.65 129.77 101.21 27.29 - 573.92

As at March 31, 2022 O ding for followi: iods from due date of

-3 -3 L iaud 4

Not due Less than 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than Total
1 year 3 years

Total outstanding dues of micro 209.95 45.19 - 255,14
enterprises and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors 4950 7237 041 - 122.24
other than micro enterprises and
smzll enterprises

Disputed Dues of micro 7 -
enterprises and small eaterprises

Disputed Dues of creditors other -
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Total 49.50 282.32 45.60 - - 37742
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Footnote:
T ‘Trade pavables are non interest bearing and are normally seeded in nomal trade eyele.

)
i) lor explanation on the Company liquidity risk management process refer note no. 41

For terms and conditions with related partics, refer note no. 4.

18. Other current financial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due
001" Optionally convertible non cumulative preference shares classified as financil lability
Emplovee relaced payable

1 For explanation on the Company liquidity risk management process refer note no. 41,
11y For terms and conditions with related partics, refer note no. 40,

19. Other current liabilities

Stacutory dues (payable to government authonties)
Other advances

20. Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 34)
Provision fur gratuiry
Provision for leave encashment

21. Current tax liabilities

Provision for tax

for the year ended March 31, 2023
As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
36.63 115.82
175
16.88 2218
73.33 149,75
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
18.84 20,70
343
2227 20.70
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(57
(122
- 0.86
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
49.25 17.51
49.25 17.51
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22. Revenue from operations

Sale of text books
Other operating income

Scrap sale
Content development and mamtenance fees

Notes:

ts for the year ended March 31, 2023

(1) The Company 1s engaged m publishing of educational content and bocks which are subject to Nil rate of GST.

(1) The revenue from sale of buoks ate net off tebate and discounts.
(1) Tt includes revenue from Related Paraes.

() The Company has not passed any contractual liabiities with sale of goods and accordimgh Ind AS 113 is not applicable.

23. Other income

Miscellneous balance writeen back
Profit on disposal of propecty, plant and equipiment

24, Cost of materials consumed
A. Raw material consumed

Inventory ar the begmmng of the year
Addd: Purchases durmg the vear (refer note 1)

Less: Inventory at the end of the vear
Sub-total (A)

B. Cost of materials consumed

Printmg cost
Sub-total (B)
Total (A+B)

Notes:
i. Details of purchases are as follows:

Paper

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,660.27 1,377.19
095 343
240,00 29.10
240.95 34.53
1,901.22 1,411.72
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
0.23
0.23
- 048
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2131 1245
426.33 2001.72
H7.64 21417
231 21.31
405.33 192.86
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
347.77 28459
347.77 284.59
753.10 477.45
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
426.33 201.72
426.33 201.72
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25. Purch of stock-in-trad

“Text books

26. Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

I ies at the beginning of the year
-Stock-in-trade

Inventories at the end of the year
-Stock-in-trade

Net i /(d ) in inv ies of stock-in-trade

{(This spoace hus been intetionally left bende}

y information to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
4348 40869
43,48 408.69
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
248.49 139.98
248.49 159.98
61.78 248.49
60.78 248.49
187.72 (88.52)
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27. Empl benefi

y information to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

proy ¥
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salary, wages, bunus and other benefits 254.62 63.72
Contnbution to provident and other funds (refer nute 34) 12,16 (L98
Gratuity expense (refer note 34) 6.2) 4.38
Compensated absences 3.59 273
Staff welfare expenses 0.57
277.15 71.81
28. Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest expenses on refund ot advance 347
Inteeest on delayed payment of statutory dues - .05
- 3.52
29, Dep and P
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deprecianon of property, phot and equipment (refer note 3) 2.36
- 2.36
30, Other expenses
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Consumption of packing material 0.25 19
Rene (refer note 36) 3.30 389
Legal and professional expenses (refer note 1) 1713 44T
Outsourced manpower 35.88 3045
Freght and cartage 16.24 8.4
Miscellancous expenses 0.33 0.33
73.40 88.35
Note:
(R to auditors | of goods & service tax)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Statutory andit fees 3.00 3.00
Total 3.00 3.00
31. Exceptional Income
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sale proceeds from property™® 1750101
Less @ written down value (1,665.12)
Less : Expenses incurred on transfer (25.54)
Profit on sale of property 59.34 -

"Durmg the vear, the Company has completed the process of sale of the property held at Indore. Tn carher years, the Company has classified such property as assets
held for sale m accordance with Ind AS 103 "Non-Current assets hekd for Sale and Discontinued Operations”. The expenses incurred has been setaff with the
profit on sale of of property considermy the exceptional nature of the items in accordance with the group policy.
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32 Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 on 'Earnings per Share'

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Basic carnings per share (in Rupees)
From continuing opentions (a)/(c) 95797 434.94
From discontinued operations (b)/(c) (64.94) (131.50)
Total basic earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company 895003 32544
Diluted earnings per share
Feom continuing operations (a)/(d) 93797 188.38
From discontinued operations (b)/(d) (64.94) (131.50)
Total diluted ings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company 893.03 56.88
Nominal value per share 10.00 1000
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the pany used in calculating basic and diluted eamings per
share:
From continuing operations after tax and exceptional items (a) 943.29 +47.97
From discontinued operations (b) 163.93) (12949
879.35 318.48
Weighted average number of shares No of shares No of shares
Weghted average number of equity shares (basic) for the vear (¢) 98,468 98,468
Adjustments for calculation of diluted eamings per share:
Optionally convertible non cumulative preference shares 139,326
Weighted average number of equity shares (diluted) for the year (d) 98,468 237,794
33 Contingent liabilitics, ingent assets and commitments

A.  Commitments:
(1) There are no capital and other material commitmens as ac Macch 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 Rs. Nil)

B. Contingent liabilities:
(1 There are contingent liabilities of Rs. 1.91 lacs as at Macch 31, 2023 (Macch 31, 2022 Rs, Nil).

34 Employee benefits

A. Defined contribution plans:
‘The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salarics, in espect of qualifying emnployees towards provident fund and EDLI
which are defined contabution plans. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specificd contabutions. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit and loss as they accrue.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Contabution to provident fund (scfer note 27) 12,16 098

B.  Defined employee bencfits schemes:

Gratuity

‘The Company operates a post-employment defined benefir plan for Gratuity. This plan eatitles an employee to receive half month's salaey for each vear of complered
service at the time of eetsieement/exit. The Company contributes to a trust set up by the Company which Fucther contributes to a poliey taken from the Life Insurance
Corporation of India.

"The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which secognize cach period of service as giving rise
to additonal employee benefit entitfement and measures each unit separately to build up the final oblgation.

“Ihe most recent actuasial valuation of plan asscts and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were caeried outas at March 31, 2023, The present
value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Umit Credit Method.
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1. The following table set out the status of the defined benefit obligation

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net defined benefit liability
Liabihev for gratuity 46.87 36.71
Total employee benefit liabilities 46.87 36.71
Non-current 46.87 36.14
Current - 1137

I1. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability
“The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) ability and its components:

Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
Defined benefit Fairvalue of ~ Tvetdefined | b credbenefit  Fairvalue ofplan  Net defined benefit
obligation plan assets bene.ﬁ ' - obligation assets (asset)/ liability
(asset)/ liability
Balance at the begimning of the year 36.88 0.7 36.71 116 0.17 0.99
Included in profit or loss
Adjustment acquisition Out - -
Adjustment acyuisition In 1217 - 1217 L2 . 30.02
Current service cost 335 - 355 +.30 4.30
Interest cost (income) 2.66 - 266 08 - 0.08
18.38 - 18.38 34.40 - 34.40
Included in OCI
Remeasusements loss (gain)
— Actuarial loss (gain) ansing from:
- financal assumptions {10.06) {10.06) (2.09) - (2.00)
- experience adjustment 1.84 L84 3.4 341
Retun on plan assets excluding interest
income
(8.22) - (8.22) 132 - 1.32
Other
Contributions paid by the emplover - .
Benefits paid
Balance at the end of the vear 47.04 0.17 46.87 36.88 0.17 36.71
Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Service cost 335 4.30
Net interest cost 2.66 .08
6.21 4.38
I11. Plan assets
Plan assets
March 31, 2023 % of Plan assets March 31, 2022 % of Plan assets

Funds managed by msurer - 1 - 100
On an annual basis, an assct-liability matching study is done by the Company whereby the Company contrbutes the net increase in the actuarial iabality to the plan

manager in order to manage the lability risk.

IV. Actuarial assumptions

a) Economic assumptions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the marker yields avadable on government bonds at the
accounting date with a teem that matches that of labilitics. Salary increase rate eakes mto account of inflation, seniority. promotion and other relevant factors on long
term basis. Valuation assumptions are as follows which have been selected by the Company.

Discount rate
Lixpected eare of future salary increase

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
738" 7.22%
GNP o 840" o

The discount rate has been assumed at March 31, 2023 7.38 s (March 31, 2022: 7.22" o) which s deterauned by ceference to macket yield at the balance sheet date on
govesnment sccuritics. The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, ke account of inflaton, semoniy, promotion and other relevant

factors, such as supply and demand in the employment macket.
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b) Demographic assumptions

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1) Retieement age (vears) 34 34
i) Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 10" s of TALM 100 e of TALM

(2012-14) (2012-14)

m) Ages Withdrawal rate (“o)  Withdeawal rate (“ o)
Upto 30 vears 300" 300"y
frrom 31 to 44 vears 200% 2008
Above 44 vears 1000y Lowy

V. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to ane of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affecred the defined
benefit cbligation by the amounts shown below.

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
I D Increase Decrease
Discount rate (150" « movement) (222) 238 (229 244
Furure salary growth (0.30° « movement) 202 (1.88) 24 {2.23)

Although the analysis does not take aceount of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it dacs provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.

Sensttiviries as to rare of mflanon, e of merease of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy ace not applicable being a
lump sum benefit on retirement.

Description of Risk Exposures:

P

Valeations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed to various risks as follow -
A Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

B) Investment Risk — 1 Plan is funded then assets Kabilities ma h & actual mv return on assers lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation
date can impact the liability,

) Discount Rare: Reduction in discount eate in subsequent valuations can merease the plan’s liabality.

13) Mortality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impace the liabiliries.

t5) Withdrawals — Actual withdeawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdeawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan's
liability.
VI. '?., d ity lysis of the defined benefit plans in future vears
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Duration of defined benefit obligation
Tess than 1 year 094 037
Beoween 1-2 years 1.530 0.6+
Beoween 2-3 years 241 247
Over 3 vears 44.90 33.21
Total 49.75 36.89

Expected contributions to post-cmployment benefit plans for the next vear ending Rs. 7.98 lacs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 7 43 lacs).
The weighted average duration of the defined benefir plan obligation is 14.67 vears (March 31, 2022: 15,58 years).

C. Other long-term employee benefits

The Company provides for compensated absences o its employees. The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unatilised acerued compensated absences and
utilise it 10 future service periods or receive cash comy ion on ination of emplayment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve
manths aftee the end of the period in which the emplovees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within ewelve months after the ead
of such period, the benefit is chssified as a long-term emplovee benetit. The present value obligation in respect of earned Jeave is determined based on actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit methed, which recognises cach period of serviee as giving tise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures ¢ach unit
separarely to build up the final obligations.
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a)

b)

i)

“The present value obligation in respect of carned leave is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Mcthod, which recognises cach period
of service as giving rise to additonal unit of employee bencfit entitlement and cach unit separately to build up the final obligations. The ised positions
of vanous defined benefits are as under:

Based on the actuarial valuation obtamed in this respeet, the following table sets our the status of the compensated absences and the amounts recognised i the
Company’s financial statcements as at balance sheet date:

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net defined benefit liability
Fared Jeave {uafunded) 3341 1702
‘Total employee benefit liabilities 33.41 17.02
Non-current 5341 1673
Current .29

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability
“The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components:

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Defined benefit obligation
Net defined benefit lability at the beginning of the year 17.02 0.35
Included in profit or loss
Curreat service cost 257 233
Taterest cost {income) 1.23 [IXI%%
3.80 237
Included in OCI
Remeasurements loss (gam}
~ Actuarial loss (gain) acising from:
- financial assumptions (7.38) {1.01)
- Experience Adjustment 7.16 137
Retusn on plan assets
0.21) 036
Other
Contribunons paid by the emplover
Acquisition adjustment 12.80 1401
Benefits paid 0.27)
12.80 15.7
Net defined benefit liabilicy at the end of the vear 34 17.02
Exp gnised in the of profit and loss As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Service cost 257 233
Net mrterest cost 1.25 .04
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obhgation (0.21) {1.36
339 273

Actuarial assumptions

Economic assumptions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. “The discount mate is based upon the marker yields avatlible on goveenment bonds at the
accounting date with a teem that matches that of liabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of mflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on long
term basis. Valuation assumptions are as follows which have been selected by the company.

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate T.38% 7.22%
lixpected rate of futuee salary increase 640" a 8.007
N L. .
grap P
Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Retirement age (vears) 38.00 3800
Martality rates inclusive of provision for disability 1007 0 of TALM (2012-14)



Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited

Summary of significant i licies and other explanatory infc ion to the fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2023

s P P

(Al amounts are Rupees in lacs unless otherwise stated)

i) Ages Withdrawal eate (*«)  Withdrawal rate (")
g
Upta 30 vears 3% 3
From 31 to 44 vears 2% 2
Above 44 vears 1% 1%

Lixpected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the vear ending March 31, 2023 is Rs. 3.30 lacs (March 31, 2022 Rs. 3.80 lacs).
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting pedod is 14.67 years (March 31, 2022: 1538 years).

D. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the obligation
by the amounts shown below.

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
I D Increase Decrecase
Discount raze {0.3" » movement) {1.43) 1.52 (1.08) 1.19
Expected rate of future salary increase (0.5 » movement) 1.52 (1.43) 117 (1.08)

Description of risk exp
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in natuee and vary over tme. As such company is exposed o varous risks as follow -

A) Salary Increases- Actual salary mereases will inceease the Plan’s lability. Increase in salary increase sate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liabiliy.

B) Investment Risk — If Plan is funded then asscts liabilities mismatch & actual investment cetum on assets Jower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation
date can impact the liability.

€) Discount Rate : Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s habiliey.

D) Morrality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

I%) Withdeawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subscquent valuations can impact Plan’s

liability,

E. Exp d ity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future vears
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Duration of defined benefit obligation
Less than 1 vear 10.63 0.29
Beoween 1-2 years 1198 0.33
Beaween 2-5 vears 1.69 1.23
Over 5 vears .09 15.17
Total 33,41 17.02

35 Disclosure as per Ind AS 108 on 'Operating segments’
Segment mformation 18 presented in respect of the company’s key operating segments. The op
reporting structure,

are based on the compant’s management and internal
pany age

& TR

Operating Segments

“The board of directors have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM?), since they are responsible for all major decision wiee. the preparation
and exccution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, expansion, alliance, joint venture, merger and acquisition, and expansion of any facilicy. The Company’s
board reviews the results of "infrastructure facilitics and related services” on a Perindically basis, The company's board of directors uses Earning Before Tnterest, Tax and
Depreciation (EBITDA'Y) to assess the performance of the operating segments. Accordingly, there is only one Reportable Segment for the Company which is
“infrastructure facilitics and related services and related services, hence no specific disclosures have been made,

Entity wide disclosures

Information about products and services
Company deals in one business namely “publication”. Therefure product wise revenue disclosure is not applicable.

Infor ion about hical areas

BEOSTAE

Company operates under single geographic location, there are no separate repormable geographical segments.

-

Information about major (from |

“The Company derives tevenues from only customer (THolding Company) for the year ended March 31, 2023 Rs. 1661.27 lacs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 1377.19 lacs) which
amount to L per cent or more of an catity’s revenues.
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37

Leases
Qperating leases
Leases as a lessee

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 in the previous year.
Company as a Lessee

igni ing policies and other expl y infc ion to the fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2023

‘The Company has leasing agreements in tespect of operating leases for its affice premises. These lease armagements are for a period less than 12 months, hence

determined as shorr-term leases. Accordingly, the Company has elected to not to apply the Ind AS 116

The rental expense recorded for shore-teem leasc in the statement of profit & loss is as below:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A recognised in of profit and loss
Tease expense- Minimum ]ease Pavments 3.30 5.89
Total 3.30 3.89

Tn terms of the clause 22 of chapter V nero, small and Medium enterprises development Act 2006 (MSMED act 2006), the disclosure of payments duc to any supplier

as ar March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 arc as follows:

Year ended

Farticulen March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

“The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end
of cach accounting pesiod included in
-Principal amount due to supplier 7050

-Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED ACT 2006 along

with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier bevond the appointed day during cach -
accounting period

“The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making pavment (which have

been paid but beyond the appomtment day during the period) but without adding the interest -
specified under the MSMELD Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remuning unpaid at the end of cach accounting penod -
The amount of further interest remaining duce and payable even i the succeeding years, until such

date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small caterprse for the purpose of -
disallowance as a deductible under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.
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38 Deferred tax
A.  Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current tax
Current year 3174 1751
31.74 17.51
Deferred tax
Change in recognised remporary differences {349.32) (16.94}
(349.32) (16.94)
Total tax expense of continuing operations (317.58) 0.57
Tax exp of ing op does not include the following;
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Tax expenses of discontinuing operations -
B. A gnised in other prehensive income
Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
Tax
Before tax (Expense)/ Net of tax TaxI(Expense)/ Net of tax
Iacome ncome
Remeasurements of defined
benefit lability 822 14 134 (©.98)
8.22 (2.14) 0.34 (0.98)
Year ended
March 31, 2022
Rate Rate Amount
C. Profit before tax 319.05
“lax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 26.00% 26.00% 82.95
Tax cffect of:
Brought fonward losses (82,95
Permanent difference
-Non- Deductible expenses (70.33)
-Others 3352
Minmmum Alternate Tax 17.51
(317.57) 0.57

RN
N
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D‘ AT, in Aefe 4 (ax hal
As at R;::f:::::‘;: Recognized in As at
March 31, 2022 Profit and Loss ocCI March 31, 2023
Deferred tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (4441} 333.92 - (90.49)
Provisions (13.7h 5445 2,14 2285
“T'rtade pavables (1.98) .73 - 7.76
Others (2.54) . - (25)
Sub- Total (a) (462.63) 398.10 2.14 (62.39)
Deferred tax Assets
Unabsorbed losses 509.78 (84.80) - 424.98
MAT credit entitlements 17.51 31,74 - 49.25
Sub- Total (b) 527.29 (53.06) - 474.23
Net deferred tax assets (b)-(a) 64.67 345.04 2.14 411.84
As at Rset::egme::iol? Recognized in As at
March 31, 2021 Profit and Loss ocClI March 31, 2022
Deferred tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (31499 733 - {441
Provisions {0.39) (13.01} (0.34) (13.74)
Trade payables (6.62) 465 - (198
Others (2.54) - (2.50)
Sub- Total (a) (521.95) 59.67 (0.34) (462.63)
Deferred tax Assets
Cnabsorbed losses 560.33 (39.35) - 309.78
MAT Credit Entstlements 17.51 - 17.51
Sub- Total (b) 569.33 (42.05) - 527.28
Net deferred tax assets (b)-(a) 47.38 17.62 (0.34) 64.66
E. Taxlosses carried forward
As at . As at .
March 31,2023 TPV Aale e oh 31,2022 Expiry date
Expire - 3475 March 31,2023
Expire - 9382 March 31, 2024
Expire - 33.31  March 31, 2025
Fxpire - 101,70 March 31, 2026
Lxpire - 63.67 March 31,2029
Never Expire 1,164.69 - 1,631.39 -
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39 On March 16, 2017, the Company had entered into a Business Transfer Agreement (“BT.A”) to scll its Infrastructure Services

business (the “Assets™) on a slump sale basis to 1-Take Care Private Limited, however, such BT\ failed to fructify and was
terminated in the third quarter of the financial year ended 31 March 2022 The proposed sale of Assets is consistent with the
Company’s long-term strategy to discontinue its K-12 business and the Management remains committed to its plan to scll the
Assets. The Management is actively scarching for potential buyers for these Assets and accordingly, considers such future disposal to
be highly probable and therefore, continues to disclose such Assets as "Disposal Group - \ssets held for sale” as on the reporting

date in accordance with Ind AS-105 "Non-Current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations".

The following statement shows the revenue and expenses of the business subject to slump sale:

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue - -
Other Income - -
Finance cost 62.94 128.68
Depreciation and amortization expenses - -
Other expenses 1.01 0.81
Loss from discontinued operations before tax (63.95) (129.49)
Income tax expenses - -
Loss from discontinued operations after tax (63.95) (129.49)

As at March 31, 2023, the carrying value of the fixed assets and other assets are listed below. The process of selling the said listed

assets expected to be completed on March 31, 2024.

As at As at
Particular March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Property, plant and cquipment 1,323.40 2,988.53
Other current assets - -
Total Assets 1,323.40 2,988.53
The net cash flows attributable to the business subject to slump sale are stated below:-

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Operating activitics
[nvesting activities

[‘inancing activities

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

5




Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,

2023

(Allamounts are Rupees in lacs unless otherwise stated)

40 'The Disclosure as required by the Indian Accounting Standard <24 (Related Party Disclosure) are given below:

(a) List of related partics with whom transactions have aken place and reladonships:

Relationship Name of related party
(i)  Holding Company CL BEducate Limited
Name Type Ownership Control
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
CL Educate Limited Holding Company 100.00° 100.00° 0

(i) Koy Management Personnel (KMP?) and their relatives

(iv) Lnterprise in which Key Managerial Personnel are able to
exercise significant influence

(b} Details of related party disclosure are as follows:

Particulars

1. Sale of text books
CI. Educate Limited

2.  Sale of Content development and maintenance fees
CIL. LEducate Limited

3. Reimbursement of expenses
CL. Educate Limited

3. Purchase of text books
CL Educace Limited

3.  Unsecured loan taken
CI. Educate Limited

4. Repayment of Unsecured Loan
CI. Educate Limited

5. Interest on loans
CI. Educate Limited

6. Conversion of interest into loan
CI. Educate Limited

7. Infrastructure Charges
CL Educate Limited

8. Cost Sharing
CL Iiducate Limited

¢ Mr. Gautam Puri (Director)

Mr. Sujit Bhattacharya (Dircctor)

" CL Educate Limited Employee Group Gratuity Trust

Bilakes Consulting Peivate Limited

Year ended March  Year ended March

31, 2023 31, 2022
1,660.27 1,372.92
240.00 29.10
26.13 -
43.48 408.69
- 113.39
965.18 617.28
62.94 128.68
115.82 -
3.30 3.89
1416 26.77

<
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Balancec outstanding as at the year end

Trade payables
CI. Educate Limited

Trade receivables
CI. Educate Limited

Unsecured loans
CL Educate Limited

Interest accrued on unsecured loans
CL Educare Limited

Long term loans and advances
Bilakes Consulting Private Limited

Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties

ial statements for the year ended March 31,

Year ended March  Year ended March

31,2023 31, 2022
340.52 23381
119.92 2355
281.10 1,130.47

56.65 115.82
16.00 16.00

1. The terms and conditions of the transactions with key management personnel were no more favorable than those available, or which might
reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to non-key management personnel related entities on an arm’s length basis.

ii. Il oucstanding balances with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis and are to be settled in cash. None of the balances are

secured.

. For the year ended March 31, 2025 the Company has not recorded any impairment of recetvables relating to amounts owed by related party
{(March 31, 2022: Rs. Nil). This assessment 1s undertaken cach financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and

the market in which the related party operates.
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41. Fair value measurement and financial instruments

a. Financial instruments — by category and fair values hierarchy

The following table shows the carrving amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the faie value

hicrarchy.

As on March 31, 2023

Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using
FVTPL FVOCI | Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets

Current

T'rade receivables - 645.27 645.27 B -

Cash and cash cquivalents - 361.39 361.39 - -

Total - 1,012.54 1,012.54 - -

Financial liabilities

Current

Borrowings - 281.10 281.10

Trade payables - 573.92 573.92 -

Other current financial liabilities - 73.53 73.53 -

Total - - 928.55 928.55 -

As on March 31, 2022

Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using
FVTPL FVOCI | Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets

Current

Trade receivables 552.42 552.42 - -

Cash and cash equivalents - 0.53 0.53 - -

Loans - - - - -

Total - - 552.94 552.94 - -

Financial liabilites

Current

Borrowings - 1,130.47 1,130.47 - -

“I'rade payables 377.42 377.42 -

Other fimancial liabilitics 149.75 149.75

Total - - 1,657.63 1,657.63 - - -

Level 1: It includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the
use of observable market data and rely as lictde as possible on entity specific estimates. 1f all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument ace
observable, the instrument s included in level 2.

Level 3: [f one or more of the significant inputs 1s not based on observable market data, the instrument 18 mcluded in level 3. The fair value of
financial asscrs and liabilitics included in Level 3 1s determined m accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes of similar instruments.
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The Compang's borrowings have been contracted at floating rates of interest. Accordingly, the carrying value of such borrowings (including interest
accrued but not due) which approximates fair value.

“The carrving amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets and habilities, approximates the faie
values, due to their short-term nature. Fair value of non-current financial assets which includes bank deposits (due for matunty after ewelve months
from the reporting date) is similar to the carrving value as there is no significant differences between carrying value and fair value.

The fair value for sccurity deposits were caleulated based on discounted cash flows using a current lending rate.

Valuation processes
The Management performs the valuations of financial asscts and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes on a pertodic basts, mcluding level
3 fair values.

There are no transfers between level 1and level 2 during the year. There are no financial assets/ liabilities measured at fair value/ amortised cost for
which level 1 and level 2 inputs have been used. Accordingly, disclosures related to level 1 and 2 inputs are not applicable.

Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks adsing from financial inscruments:
= Credit risk

* Liquidity risk

* Market risk

Risk management framework

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Companys risk management framework. The
Board of Dircctors have authorised senior management to establish the processes and ensure control over risks through the mechanism of properly
defined framework in line with the businesses of the company.

The Company's risk management policies are established to idendfy and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risks limits and
controls, to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activitics,

The Company has policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, forcign currency risk, other price risk, credit risk, iquidity risk, and the use
of derivative and non-desvative financial instruments. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed on a continucus basis.
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b. Financial risk management (continued)

(i) Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represeated by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet.

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
T'radc recetvables 645.27 552,42
Cash and cash equivalents 361.39 0.53
Loans 5.88 -

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers.

The Company’s eredit risk is primarily to the amount due from customers. 'The Company maintains a defined credit policy and monitors the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing basis. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in
deposits with scheduled commercial banks with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencics.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Trade reccivables are unsecured and are
derived from revenue carned from customers primarily located in India. The Company does monitor the economic environment in which it
operates and the Company manages its Credit risk through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring credit
worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

On adoption of Ind S 109, the Company uses expected eredit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company establishes an
allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivable. The management uses a simplified approach (L.e.
based on lifetime ECIL) for the purpose of impairment loss allowance, the company estimates amounts based on the business environment in
which the Company operates, and management considers that the trade receivables are in default (credit impaired;, when counterparty fails o
make payments for receivable as per terms of service agreements. However the Company based upon historical experience determine an
impairment allowance for loss on receivables.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The Company monitor credit risk very closely both in domestic
and export macket. The Management impact analysis shows credit risk and impact assessment as low.

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables are as follows:

. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Not Due 119.92 27.07
0-3 months past due - -
3-6 months past due -
6 months to 1 years -
1-2 years 183.78
2-3 years 183.78 341.57
morc than 3 vears past due 341.57 -

645.27 552.42

In case of payments due from related parties there is no default as there is insignificant credit risk. This definition of default is determined by
considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors. Further, the Company doces not anticipate any
material credit risk of any of its other receivables.

The Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than the agreed eredir period are sdll collectible in full, based on
historical payment behavior and analysis of customer credit risk.

Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables:
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b. Financial risk ma t (continued)

(if) Liquidity risk

Tiguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are scttled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity 1s to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity o meer its
liabilitics when they fall due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company believes that its liquidity position, including total cash (including bank deposits under lien and excluding interest acerued but not duc) of Rs. 361.39
lacs as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: (.53 lacs) and the anticipated future internally generated funds from operations will enable it 10 meet its future known

obligations in the ordinary course of business.

Prudent liquidity risk management implics maintaining sufficient cash and markerable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
credit facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements o ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and funding from group companics to meet its hiquidity requirements in the short and long term.

The Company's liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following:
- Day to day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met.

- Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Company’s hquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilitics at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and includes interest

accrued but not due on borrowings.

As at March 31, 2023 Contractual cash flows
. Less than one year | Between one year| More than five Total
Caerying amsount to five years years
Optionally convertible non cumulative preference shares
classified as financial liability - . N - -
Borrowings 337.75 337.75 - - 337.75
Trade pavables 573.92 573.92 - - 573.92
Fmplovee related payables 16.8% 16.88 - - 16.88
Total 928.55 928.55 - - 928.55
As at March 31, 2022 Contractual cash flows
X Less than one year | Between one year| More than five Total
Canrying amount to five years years
Optionally convertible non cumulative preference shares
classified as financial liabiliry 11.75 11.75 N N 1175
Borrowings 1,246.28 1,246.28 - - 1,246.28
T'rade payables 377.42 37742 - = 377.42
Implovee related payables 22.18 2218 - - 22.18
Total 1,657.63 1,657.63 - - 1,657.63
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B. Financial risk management (continued)

iii. Market risk

Marker risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. the Company mainly has exposure to two type of market risk namely:
currency risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the retarn.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term and short term borrowings with variable interest rates, which expose the Company to cash
flow interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the term loans and cash credit from banks carrying floating rate of interest. These obligations
expose the Company’s cash flow to interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes as reported to the
management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

‘The company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107,
since neither the carrving amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Variable-rate instruments As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Borrowing (Current) 337.75 1,246.28
Total 337.75 1,246.28

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A\ reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
50 bps increase 50 bps decrease 50 bps increase 50 bps decrease

Interest on borrowings from others
For the year ended March 31, 2023 (3.46) 3.46 (2.56) 2.56
For the year ended March 31, 2022 (7.07) 7.07 (5.23) 523
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42 Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves attributable to
the equity holders of the Company.

Management assesses the Company”s capital requirements in order to maintain an cfficient overall financing structure. The Company manages
the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the rsk characterstics of the underlying
ASSCLS.

“T'o maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to sharcholders, raise new debt or issuc new shares.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts divided by total capital
(equity attobutable to owners of the parent plus interest-bearing debts).

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Borrowings 337.75 1,246.29
Less : Cash and cash equivalent (361.39) (0.53)
Adjusted net debt (A) (23.64) 1,245.76
Total equity (B) 1,877.33 2,155.47
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) -1.26% 57.80%
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43 Ratios as per Schedule 111 requirements
Ratio Numerator Denominator Unit March 31,2023  March 31, 2022 Y variance Reason for variance
Current ratio Current assets Current liabiltics Times L14 049 133.73%. Due w merease m carrent
assets and deceease m current
Trabilities.
Debt- Equity Ratio  Tutal Debt Shareholder’s Equity Tunes 013 032 143 Decrease in debt o equty
‘refee note | below) ato i daven due o
repayment of Debts i current
vear,
Debt Service Farnings for debt service = Net  Debt service Times 0.98 .63 35.28" Duc to wmcrease n earnings
Coverage ratio profit after taxes + Non-cash {reter note 3 belowy and repayment of debrs.
operaung expenses
Trefer note 2 below)
Return on Net Profus after taxes — A\verage Sharcholder's Equity “u 47.16% 14.73%a 22L19"% Due  to  redemption  of]
Equity ratio Preference Dividend Preference share capital and
increase m net profit,
Inventory Tumnover  Cost of goods sokd Average Inventory Times 3.28 3.61 46.24% Due to mcrease m seale of
ratio operatons and  decrease in
closing mventory.
Trade Reccivable Net credit sales = Gross ceedit Average Trade Recevable Times 295 256 15.29%, Not applicable
Turnover Ratio sales - sales rerurn
Jrefer note 4 below)
Trade Payable Net credit purchases = Gross \verage Trade Payables Times 043 0.39 9.28% Nat applicable
Tumnover Ratio credlic purchases - purchase
return
Net Capital Turmover Net sales = Total sales - sales Working capital = Current Times 13.61 .62 038,13, Due to merease m sales and
Ratio retum assets — Cueeent kabihrses decrease 1 current habihites!
of the company
Net Profit ratio Net Profic Net sales = Toral sakes - sales Y 46370 22.49% 107074 Due to merease m net profit
retum
Return on Capital Farnmgs before mterest and Capital Employed b 36.90% 1344% 174,62 Due to increase in camings
Employed taxes (refer nate 6 below)
“refer note 3 below)
Notes:

1. Total debts consists of borrowings.

- Eaming avaidable for debt services=profit for the year + depreciation and amortzatom + finance cost.

2
3. Dbt service = Interest + principal repavments.
4. Credit sales = Toral Revenue + opening unbilled revenue - closing unbilled revenue - opening defereed revenue + closing deferred revenue.

3. Farnings before mierest and taxes = profit before tax + tmance cost - other meame

6. Capital Employed = Average tangible net worth + Total debt + Defeered tax.

7. Average i ealenlated based on simple opentag and closug balances.

44 There is a trade receivable due to Career Launcher Infrasteucture Pavate Limated ““CLIP™ from the Nalanda Foundation of Rs. 325 Lacs, who had |

i schuol infy

tre from CLIP n

Indore and Raipur but failed to meet its payment obligations. Due o a considerable delay by the Nalanda Foundation in meetings its obligations, despite tepeated reminders, CLIT has initiated
legal proceedings agamst them for recovery of dues and return of assets. with the Honorable Dell High Court. The Honorable Delhi Tligh Court had mstructed Nalanda Foundation to remm
the assets to CLIP and appomted an arbiteator to hear the dispute. The land assets were retumned as per the order of the High Court. The hearings in the matter have been concluded and the

order s reserved,

(This spoce b been éntentionally et blamk)
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43 Ratios as per Schedule I requirements
Ratio Numerator Denominator Unit March 31,2023  March 31, 2022 ‘Ya variance Reason for variance
Current ratio Cureent assets Cureeent Labikines Times 114 049 133737 Due to merease m current
assets and decrease m current
Tabilitics.
Debt- Equity Ratio  Total Debe Sharcholder's Equate Times 015 052 TFLAA" Deerease o debt 1o equity
“refer note 1 below) ratio 1 dowen due  to
repayment of Debts m current
vear.
Debt Service Lacnings for debeservice ~ Net Debt service Times .98 063 35.28" Due to merease in eamings
Coverage ratio profit after taxes + Non-cash (refer note 3 below) and repayment of debts.
operating expenses
‘refer note 2 below)
Retum on Net Profirs after taxes — \verage Shareholder's Lguity v 47.16% 14734 22119 Due  to  wdemption  of]
Equity ratio Preference Dividend Preference share capital and
mnerease u net probit.
Inventory Tumover  Cost of goods sold Average Inventory Times 3.28 361 46240 Duc to merease i scale of)
ratio operatsons and  decrease @
closing mventory.
Trade Receivable Net credit sales = Gross eredit Average Trade Recenvable Fimes 295 236 13.29% Not applicable
‘Turmover Ratio sales - sales ecturn
<refer note 4 below)
‘Trade Payable Net credit purchases = Gross \verage Trade Payables Tunes 043 039 9.28%, Nor applicable
‘Turnover Ratio credit purchases - purchase
retum
Net Capital Turnover Net sales = Total <ales - sales Working caprtal = Current Tumes 13.61 162 038, 13" Due to mcrease m sales and
Ratio retuen assets — Current labilsties decrease 10 current habihties
of the company
Net Profit ratio Net Profit Net sales = Total sales - sales "o 46.57"y 22.49% L0707 Duc to merease m et profir
feturn
Return on Capital Farnings before wterest and Capial Employed "a 36" 1344"% 174h62% Due to increase m earnings
Employed faxes {refer note 6 below)
“refer note 3 below)
Notes:

4

L. Total debts consists of borrowings.

2. Earning available fur debrt services=profit for the vear + depreciation and amortization -~ fmance cost.

3. Debr service = Interest + prncipal eepavments.
. Ceedit sales = Total Revenue + opening unbiled revenue - closing unbilled revenue - opening deferced revenue + closing defereed revenue.

3. Easnings before mierest and taxes = profit before tax + finance cost - adher mecome

6. Capital Emploved = \verage tangible net worth + Total dubt + Deferred tax.

7. Averge s ealeudated based on simple opening and closmg, balances.

There s a teade recewvable due to Career Launcher Infrastaucrure Private Limited (“CLIP™) from the Nalanda Foundation of Rs. 523 Lacs, who had licensed school mfrastructure from CLIP in
Indore and Rawpur but fatled o meet its payment obligations. Due to a considerable delay by the Nalanda Foundation i meetmgs its oblignnons, despite repeated remmders, CLID has itiated
legal proceedings agamst them for recovery of duces and return of assets, with the Honorable Delhi High Court. The Honorable Delbi Tigh Court had wstructed Nalanda Foundation to vetum
the assets to CLIP and appomted an acbitrator to hear the dispute. The land assets were rerumed as per the order of the Iigh Court. The heaeings in the matter have been concluded and the
order is reserved,

(This spave s beess intentionally lelt blawk )




Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2023

(Allamounts are Rupees in lacs unless othenwisce stated)

45 These financial statements were authosized for issuc by Board of Directors on May 10, 2023.

46 Other statutory information
{i The Company docs not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibiuon) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thescunder.

(11) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies .\ct, 2013 or section
560 of the Companies \ct, 1956.

(115} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrars of Companies (ROCY beyond
the statutory period.

(iv) The Company has complied with number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companics
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall;

- dircetly or indircetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
3 y P ) ) pany

(Ulimate Beneficiaries); or

- provide any guarantee, security ot the like t or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiasies.

(vi) The Company has not receved any fund from any pesson(s) or entity(ics), including foreign entitics {Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether secorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultmate Beneficiaries); or

- provide any guarantec, sceurity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaties.

(vii) "The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disciosed as income during the current and preceding year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or
survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961},

(viii} The Company has not traded or invested in crvpto currency or virmal currency during the current and the preceding financial
vear.

(ix) The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender (as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of
India.

(x) All'title deeds of Immovable Property are held in the name of the Company except a frechold land amounting to Rs. 66.24 lacs and
the same has been classified as Disposal Group - asscts held for sale.

47 Previous years figures have been regrouped and/or re-arranged wherever necessary to conform to current year's groupings and
classtfications.

As per our report of even date.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
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